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Lower right and left side:
Methodist Church in Knappa, Oregon
Dismantled and moved to Brownsmead in 1922.

Upper left:
Became Brownsmead Evangelical Lutheran Church in 1925,

Upper right:
Educational unit added to church building in 1956.

Center:
Immanuel Lutheran Church, Knappa, Oregon. built in 1968.
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Pastor's Letter

"and his name shall be called Immanuel, which means ‘God with
us.'"™ Matthew 1:23 :

In 1948, this congregation
decided to c¢hange 1its name for the
third time. The name they chose was
"Immanuel Lutheran Church." That was
the name that stuck. Immanuel means
"God with us.”™ I do not know why they
chose this name from all other names,
But I think that this is a fine name.
The name is an apprepriate one for
this family of £faith. 1In our very
name we realize what we are about as
Christians: God has promised to be
present with us in our daily lives
wherever we may be. OQOur very name
also tells us what type of God we
experience through the Word and the
Sacraments: not an abstract or
detached god but an intimate God who
is involved in his creation.

One of the interesting aspects of the name Immanuel 1s that
there is no verb included in the Hebrew meaning of the name.
Immanuel can mean "God has been with us.” Often by remembering
our past, we can see how God has worked in our lives. 1 believe
that this is also true with our congregation. Immanuel c¢an also
mean "God is with us.”" In our present community of faith, God is
still as active as ever. "God will be with us" is yet another
meaning. Through Jesus Christ, we have no fear of the future. We
can have a certain hope in God's future care and concern for us.

Special thanks should be given to those histories of the
church which were an important part of this history. Anna
Sakie's history, written in 1964, was most helpful. Eileen
Cheuvront also had written a history for the 70th Anniversary
which was also helpful. Thanks should be given to Eileen and
Karen Schneider for their proofreading at the last minute.
Thanks is also in store for the many members who over the years
have written articies in Church Newsletters and Annual Reports;
and for The Daily Astorian. Finally, thanks to all the friends
and members of Immanuel, without whom this history would not
have been written.

I have learned much about you as a congregation from working
on this history booklet. And I hope that you too -- whether you
are an old-time member, a newer member, a friend, or a visitor
-~ will learn still more about this community of faith from the
following pages. '

God be with you!

Lou Schneider, Pastor




IMMANUEL LUTHERAN CHURCH

The history of Immanuel Lutheran Churcl. has been quite
interesting. It ail began on March 30, 1914, when at the home of
Henry and Hanna Lahti, 25 pecople of Finnish descent signed the
charter to form the "Blind Slough Finnish Evangelical Lutheran
Church." Among those elected to the first church board were:

Jalmer Gerttula, secretary, and Lucy Cacrlson (Gerttuiaj,
treasurer. Because there was no church building, the
congregation met in the homes of the members for the first ten

years. The first pastor, the Rev. D. J. Eim, an Astoria
minister, came by boal to lead worship services once a month.
These services were held in Finnish. In these beginning years,
the pastor came by train or boat from Astoria. Fiom its start in
1916 to 1its first resident pastor, the «congregation had seven
different pastoro: Rev. D. J. Elm (1916-1919), Rev. Frans Kava
(1%19-1922 Rev. Arvo Kornonen (1922-1%23), Rev. Evert Torkko
(1932~ ¢944;, Rev. Uura Sarnivaara (1542), Rev. ©F. W. FKaaskinen
(1542-1947), Rev. Melvin Hagelberg (1946-19%435).

The congregyation became a member of the Fionishh Evangelical
Lutheran Church, Suomi Synod in 1517. In 1%23 the Knappa
Methodist Church building was brought and moved to a =ite in
Brownsmead. The congregation finaily had a c¢hurch building.
During these early years, there weire few expenses, except to paj
the pastor. It i3 recorded that the funds on nand at the 13524
annual meeting were $1637.19. (More than what 1is presently in
the checking account!)

For a long time the services were held only in Finnish. About
1%44 a new era for the congregation began when worship services
were said in English as well as Finnish. This came about when
one of the wembers, John Polso, passed away. While Pastor
Kaskinen was conducting the service, he noted that many of those
attending did not understand Finnish. So he wused both Engllgh
and Finnish. Rev. Rasxinen would be the last pastor to
Fiannish at Immanuel. None of the resident pastoirs spoke tLhe
language.

In the spring of 1%44 Immanuel's first regular Sunday Sclool
was started by Mi. rred diin and Mis. Hilda fbeino. S0 aliiiuus
£

was Mr. Hirn on the first day of Sunday School, it is said tuoat
he bought soda pop for the eatire Sunday School on opening day.
It 1s also said that when the word got around about this (leat,
the teachers were not lacking for students. Leconard Allen was
the fiist Sunday School Superintendent. Among the early Sunday

School teachers were: Esther Kelster, Eve Hedges, Dora Bersagel,
Hilma Lumi jaivi, aud ViLg;nia Estoos. :
i o o % = S~ 1. - ISR | s p—— B
During the years, the blnu‘bh Ladies Aid Wwas very active.
The "Ladies' Ai1d" ‘s.!k‘,‘\J":;] Wit 12 members in Sept embel of 1%q4.
Anna Sarkie was chosea o pe 1ts  first president. Thei: firsc

bazaar was held ia  the late fail. Buying eqguipment Lor i
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church kitchen and helping the Sunday School were their first
projects. Through the years the women's group has had- several
names: the "Ladies' Aid," the "Immanuel Guild,” the "Lutheran
church Women," and the "Women of the Evangelical Lutheran Church
in America." Through their efforts much has Dbeen accomplished
for Immanuel. Bazaars, dinners, food sales, mother-daughter
dinners and much more have been held. Pie socials, which
included the whole community, were also very popular. The
women's group also served in service projects like that of the
Lutheran Service Center in Astoria for the servicemen.

In 1946, the church was redecorated and renamed '"Immanuel
Lutheran Church of Brownsmead." The <church acquired a Sunday
School bus in 1948. Howard Keister and Donald Bartlett drove
about the country each Sunday morning gathering children for
Sunday School. The bus soon developed many ills, so it was sold.
Nevertheless the Sunday School continued to grow.

The first wedding held in the church was in 194& when Joyce
Gerttula and Vernon Vinson were married by Rev. Kaskinen.

In 1951, the first confirmation services were held. Among
these first confirmands were Jim Allen, Melvin Lampi, Eleanor
and Louise Olson, Larry and Jimmy Tufy, and Eileen Barendse.

During the early fifties, there were two English services a
month and one Finnish service. The utmost desire of many in the
congregation was to have a resident pastor of their very own.
One woman in the congregation, who had some money of her own,
would have used it to guarantee the support of one. As it turned
out she didn't have to use her money, because the money needed
to call Immanuel's first resident pastor was placed in the
church treasury by the Immanuel Guild (the Church Women's Group
at that time). On May 1, 1952, Immanuel Lutheran Church no
longer had to depend on pastors coming from Astoria. The Rev.
Marvin Pekkala became Immanuel's first resident pastor. At the
time, Immanuel, which had 40 members and 55 Sunday School
students, was the only church in the community. Members of other
denominations, however, did attend. Immanuel began to grow.

Under Pastor Pekkala's leadership, a senior and junior choir
were active. Vacation Bible School began. The Sunday School
grew. At the annual meeting of January. 1954, the Building Fund
for a Sunday School addition and restrooms was begun with
several donations from the c¢ongregation. The restrooms were
especially looked forward to because some of the members still
didn't have such luxuries in their homes.

During Pastor Pekkala's ministry at Immanuel, Luther League
also was started. It is said that at the first Luther League
meeting, parents insisted that their reluctant teenagers attend
at least the first meeting. They soon found that these same
teenagers could not have been kept home from a meeting. The = word
spread that there was fun and fellowship with Christian friends
to be found in Luther League. Social events became standing room
only affairs and many young peopie who had known ministers only
as necessary pirops for weddings and funerals, found that a



pastor can be a real friend and a regular person. t also was
said that Pastor Marvin would wear Lis Swiil SuUl undeir  huis
clerics so that he could go directly to the Autics Lo watetr SKhi
after church.
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Introduced during the services of Pastor Pekkala wWas
Immanuel's first church pape: called, '"Chapel Notes. " The
newsletter was a wey which the pastor, membelrs, and churceh

organizations could let the congregation Know what was happening
in the life of the church. Over the years the name of the
newsletter was changed to the "Informer," to the "Church Mouse, "
to simply the "Immanuel Newsletter znd Calendar." This month 1in
honoir of the 75th Anniversary, and of our praye: that God will
be always with us, the newsletter will once again have a name;
"The Presence."

To the church building was added a bunk house for Sunday
School (1956). At the annual meeting of January 1956, it was
decided that the church would purchase the Fowser home for a
parsonage. The cohgregation was able to pay the mortgage off in
five years. The parsonage was later sold in 1965,

Pastor Pekkala resigned in August 1656, and relinquished his
office October 1, 195%6. After he left, the congregation was
served by other pastors of the area and by pre-theciogical
students from Pacific Lutheran College. Calls to pastors were
sent, and in the spring of 1957 Pastor Donald Kopenen accepted
the call. Shortly after the arrival of Pastor Koponen, one oI
the rooms in Sunday School chapel was made 1into the pastei f o
study with a telephone installed.

Mr. Earl Edmonds, teacher of music at Knappa High Schocl.
became choir director and held the position until he left Knappa
for another position. The Service Book and Hymnal (the 0l1d Red
Book) was ordered. The new Lutheran service was introduced 1in
May of 1958. Two services were held on Sunday now, one at the
Sunday School hour and the other at 11:15 a.m.

In 1961, Immanuel Luthecan Church voted unanimously to
participate in the merger of the Suomi. Synod with thiree otle:
Lutheran bodies in the United States to become the Lutheran
Church in America. This meirger became a reality on January 4,
1363.

In June 1964, there was a 50th Anniversary celebration, with
dinner and special secrvices. Four charter members were present:
Jalmer and Lucy Gerttula, Art Erickson and Mrs, Hanna Raltanen.
Other long time members honored at the time were Mary Wiinikna,
Fanny Xangas, and Sophia Saranpaa. There was 159 confiimed
members at that time=.

In 1968 the congregation dedicated its present Dbuilding. In
1970, Pastor Brooks began his ministry at Immanuel. Pastor
Brooks had the longest ministry at Immanuel of any pastor so
far. When Pastor Erocks first «came . he served both Immanuel
Lutheran Churci and tl Lutheran Church 1in <Clatskanle. By
1373, both Immanue! i Faith had pastors of their own. Iin the
area of worship, Ilmmanuel Dbegan a new era when .. began using
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'BLIND SLOUCH FINNISH TVANCELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH"

Betta Carisou Hanna Lanti

John Carlson Henry Lanti

Lucy Cariscn (Gerttula) Maria Haima

Hilma Erickson Hanna Keranen (Raitanen)
Sophia Heikkila Alexandria Erickson

Sara Hillstrom Andrew Juntilla

Axel Hillstrom Jack Heundrickson

Albert Hillstrom John Jonnson

Mrs. John Takalo Sustina Takalo

Amanda Gerttula Maria Takalo

John Gerttula Niku Jylkka

John Gerttula, Jr. E. M. Gerttula

J. H. Gerttula’ Arthur Erickson

Cf these 27 Charter Members, only Mrs. Lucy Gerttula is  stiil
with us. Lucy was 18 years o:d when she signed the chuich
charter. Her name was Lucy Carlson at the time of the sigaoing.
At the time of the signing Lucy was the treasurer and Lhe inan
who was to become her husband, Jalmer Gerttula was the Liist

secretary of the church.

In 1954, Mrs. Lucy CGerttula with her husband Jalmer were vuled
lifetime honory members o¢f the «church council of Immanuel
Lutheran Church. On this 73th Anniversary, Lucy will be amony
those we honor for her service 1n our church community.

f—

FECPLE HONORED FOR 50 YEARS OF SERVICE

During this 75th Anniversary, the church wishes to ‘thank all
people fcr their service through the years. Special thanks 1is
given for those {olks who have been a part of this family of God

for 50 years and over:

Lucy Gerttula Lila Raihaia
Jean Browi Joyce Smith

Roy & Siv Salmi Eileen Cheuvront
Fanni Lampi Jim Allen

Ginny Shepherd ‘ Buddy Vinson

Thani yoi. We 1ook forward to 50 move!
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The Rev. Carl Thomas Kangas
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Rev. Anderson was born on April 3, 1933 in Merill, WI. Belore
Rev. snderson came to Immanuel, he went to scnool at Augustana
College in Rock Island where he received his AB degree in 195..
Then rev. Anderson attended Augustana Tneoiogicali seminary, ROCkn
isianua, IL., winere he received his BD degree. In 1Y%l de was
ordained’into the Augustana Synod in Detroit, MI.

On ouly 2%, i1v0Z, the Rev. Wiiton A. Anderson was installed at
Immanuel as pastor of Immanuei Lutheran Church ana Peace
Lutheran Churceh ia Rainer, Washingtoa. waen Rev. Anderson came
to Brownsmeaw., he arrived wililt his wile anc thiee Cuc.Urleil.

Fastul Aunuclison rtesigned 10 Sepleiwer wJoa o become & Pastow
Developel oL L. Siepnen, Aditauch, (L. Later he becaime a rasior
DevVelopel ol BAM 10 fedelas Way, NA. AL Lhe present  tane, Rev.
Andersoi 15 the pastor of Christ Luitberan ChulCh ih0 redeia. Wy,

N
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IMPORTANT DATES OF IMMANUEL LUTHERAN CHURCH

Evangelical Lutheran Church.

The congregation becomes part of the Finnish

Evangelical Lutheran Church or the Suon.
Synod. '
The first building, Knappa Methodist church,

Sunday Schocl was started.

Immanuel 's first women's group started.

was Lbought.

The congregation renamed itself for a third time:-

"Immanuel Lutheran Chuvrch.'" This name stuck.

Joyce Gerttula and Verne VlLSw were the
b )
hurch.

first couple married 1n the c
-

3 0 : o & ) . 1. "
The. first confirmation service was held,

1

kkala, Immanuel's first r

T
w

The Rev. Marvin Fe
pastor, installed.
2

Vacaticn Bible School was heid for the first

The educational wing was added to the church

£
T
5
-+

time.

building.

The Service Book and Hymnal (Red Book) was introduced.

Immanuel Lutheran Church voted unanimously to
participate in the merger of the Suomi Synod
with three other Lutheran bodies to becoms
Lutheran Church in America.

{

The present church building is dedicated.
The Lutheran Rook of Worship (Green Book) was

Evangelical Lutheran Church in America forms.

i3 one of its wemicars.

introduced.

Immanuel









